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BOARDS’ REPORT
To,
The Members of
Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited
Pune 411014

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the 02" Boards’ Report on the business and operations of your
Company together with the Audited Financial Statement and the Auditors’ Report of your company for the
period ended 315 March 2025.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company’s financial performance for the year under review is given hereunder:
(Amount in INR °000)

Financial Year

Particular 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations - i
Other Income 50,101.00 -
Total Income 50,101.00 -
Total Expenditure 74,950.00 776.00
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (24,849.00) (776.00)
Tax Expenses:

1. Current Tax 6,410.00 -
2. Deferred Tax = -
3. Prior Year Income Tax - -
Profit/(Loss) for the year (31,259.00) (776.00)

2. WEBADDRESS, IF ANY, WHERE ANNUAL RETURN REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (3)
OF SECTION 92 HAS BEEN PLACED:
The disclosure of web-link is not applicable to the Company as the Company does not have a website.

3. DISCLOSURES WITH REGARD TO MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

a) Board Meetings:
During the financial year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has duly met Eighteen
(18) times, and the details of the meetings held are mentioned below:

S. | Date of meeting Total Number of | Attendance
No. | (DD/MM/YYYY) directors as on the | Number of | % of attendance
date of meeting directors attended

1 01/05/2024 2 2 100

2 03/05/2024 2 2 100

3 17/05/2024 2 2 100

4 30/05/2024 2 2 100
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5 06/06/2024 2 2 100
6 11/06/2024 3 3 100
7 01/07/2024 2 2 100
8 29/07/2024 2 2 100
9 13/08/2024 2 2 100
10 | 10/09/2024 3 2 100
11 | 23/09/2024 3 2 100
12 | 30/09/2024 3 2 66.67
13 | 08/10/2024 3 2 66.67
14 | 22/12/2024 3 2 66.67
15 | 24/12/2024 3 2 66.67
16 | 06/01/2025 3 2 66.67
17 | 19/02/2025 3 2 66.67
18 | 17/03/2025 3 3 100
b) Committee Meetings: The Company being a private Company, is not required to constitute any

committees like the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee. Further, the provisions related to requirement for constitution of CSR
Committee were also not applicable.

4. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge, confirms that for the financial year ended 315 March 2025-

a)

b)

d)

e)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and loss of the company for that
period;

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

Company being private Company sub clause (e) of section 134 (5) is not applicable.; and

The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

5. STATE THE DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS’ REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER
SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE

TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

There were no cases of fraud in the Company, hence no reporting was made by auditors of the Company
under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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6. DISCLOSURE OF STATEMENT ON DECLARATION GIVEN BY INDEPENDENT

DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149(6):

The provisions with respect to the appointment of Independent Directors are not applicable to your
company and hence the Company has not appointed any Independent Director on the Board.
Accordingly, statement on declaration by Independent Directors under Section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable.

DISCLOSURE FOR COMPANIES COVERED UNDER SECTION 178(1) ON DIRECTOR’S
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION INCLUDING OTHER MATTERS PROVIDED
UNDER SECTION 178(3):

The Company, being a private Company, is not required to formulate a policy on Directors’
Appointment and Remuneration.

AUDITORS:

a) STATUTORY AUDITORS:

M/s. BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, (FRN:101248W/W-100022) Chartered Accountants,
were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company by the members in the 01 Annual General
Meeting (AGM) for a period of five years from the conclusion of the 015 Annual General Meeting till
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2029. They continue to hold the
office as Auditors of the Company.

b) SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:
Provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

AUDIT REMARKS:
There are no reservations, qualifications, adverse remarks or disclaimers in the Auditors® Report which
require any clarification / explanation. The notes on financial statements are self-explanatory and need
no further explanation.

Observation:

Observations Management Reply

Based on our examination which included test | The Company’s book of accounts were fully
checks, the Company has used an accounting | migrated from Tally to SAP b1 starting F'Y2024-
software for maintaining its books of accounts | 2025. The accounting software includes features
which does not have the features of recording | for recording an audit trail of all entries posted
audit trail (edit log) facility. Consequently, we | and amended. However, as the implementation
are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the | phase of the software transition require more time
said software. and SAP bl was only moved into Production run
at a later date, the change/edit log functionality
was only made available for entries recorded
post-implementation phase.

The Back-up of books of accounts and other | SAP bl is a global ERP system utilised by
relevant books and papers in electronic mode has | ENGIE Group entities in the AMEA region, thus
not been kept on the servers physically located in | all the servers are not physically located in India
India on a daily basis. but are managed offshore.

10. DETAILS OF LOAN, GUARANTEE, INVESTMENT OR SECURITY GIVEN BY THE

COMPANY AS PER SECTION 186:

During the financial year under review, no loans or guarantees were provided, and no investment has
been made by the Company under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act.
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a. | Whether any loan, guarantee is given by the No
company or securities of any other body corporate
purchased?

b. | Whether the Company falls in the category provided Yes
under section 186(11)?

c. | Are there any reportable transactions on which No

section 186 applies? (whether or not threshold
exceeds 60% of its paid-up share capital, free
reserves and securities premium account or 100% of
its free reserves and securities premium account)

d. | Brief details as to why transaction is not reportable | No transactions entered during the
period under review to which
provisions of section 186 is
applicable.

11. DESCRIPTION OF THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS:
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Engie Group Participations SA, which is ultimately held
by Engie SA. The Company connects assets to the customers and markets through tailor-made power
supply solutions. The Company provides energy & energy management solutions to support clients in
transitioning to a carbon neutral economy.

During the financial year under review,
(Amounts in INR Thousands)

- the revenue from the operations is Nil
- the Company has incurred a loss of INR. 31,259/- as compared to loss of INR. 776/- in previous
financial year.

The future outlook of the Company and its professional management makes an enterprise of high quality
and high efficiency as core competition.

12. DISCLOSURE RELATING TO AMOUNTS IF ANY WHICH IS PROPOSED TO CARRY TO
ANY RESERVES:
No amount was transferred to the reserves during the Financial Year under review.

a) Brief description - Nil
b) Amount (in INR) — Nil

13. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO AMOUNT RECOMMENDED TO BE PAID AS DIVIDEND:
The directors of the Company did not recommend payment of a dividend for the financial year ending
on 31 March 2025.
a) Brief description — Nil
b) Amount (in INR) — Nil
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14. DETAILS OF MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT OCCURRED DURING THE
PERIOD BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF REPORT,
AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF COMPANY:

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and the date of the report, except as disclosed elsewhere in this report.

15. DISCLOSURE OF STATEMENT ON DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY:
Periodic assessments to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on the risks in
advance to enable the Company to control risk through a properly defined plan. The risks are classified
as financial risk, operational risk and market risks. The risks are taken into account while preparing the
annual business plan for the year. The Board is also periodically informed of the business risks and the
actions taken to manage them. Till now the Company is not having any Risk which threatens the
Company’s existence. The Company has formulated a Risk Management Policy to deal in case any such
risks are identified in future.

16. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY DETAILS:
Provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) are not applicable to the Company and the Company was not required to frame the CSR Policy.

17. DISCLOSURES UNDER RULE 8/8A OF COMPANIES ACCOUNTS RULES 2014:

(a) Details regarding energy conservation as per Rule 8(3)(A), details regarding technology
absorption as per Rule 8(3)(B) and Details regarding foreign exchange earnings and outgo as
per Rule 8(3)(C):

(A) Conservation of energy:

Wherever necessary, appropriate energy consumption measures have been undertaken. The
measures are aimed at effective management and utilization of energy resources and resultant cost
saving of the Company.

(B) Technology absorption:

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption - Nil

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution - Nil

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) — Nil

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development — Nil

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and outgo: (Amount in INR *000)
Particulars Amounts
Earnings Nil
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Outgo Nil

(b) Report on highlights on performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies
and their contribution to overall performance of the companies during the period under
report:

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies.

(c) Disclosure as per rule 8(5) of Companies Accounts Rules 2014:

(i) Disclosure of companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies during year — Not Applicable

(ii) Statement regarding the opinion of the Board with regard to integrity, expertise and
experience (including the proficiency) of the independent directors appointed during the
year:

The Company being a private Company is not required to appoint Independent Directors.
Accordingly, a statement regarding the opinion of the board about integrity, expertise and
experience (including proficiency) under section 150 is not applicable.

(iii) The details in respect of the adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements:
The Company has maintained adequate internal controls commensurate with its size and nature
of operations. There are suitably monitoring procedures in place to provide reasonable assurance
for the accuracy and timely reporting of the financial information and compliance with the
statutory requirements. There are policies, guidelines and delegation of power issued for the
compliance of the same across the Company.

(iv) A disclosure, as to whether maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is required
by the Company and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained:
During the financial year under review, your Company does not fall within the provisions of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost records & Audit) Rules,
2014, therefore the provisions with respect to maintenance of cost records are not applicable to
the Company.

(v) The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end
of the financial year —

During the financial year under review, there are no proceedings initiated/pending against the
Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(vi) The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial
Institutions along with the reasons thereof —

During the financial year under review, no such event has occurred. Hence, the disclosure
relating to the same is not applicable to the Company.
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Disclosure of change in nature of business —
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.

Details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned
during year:
During the year under review,

1. Mr. Gonzague Florizel Dedrouin Debouville (DIN: 10060640) has resigned from the post of
directorship of the Company w.e.f. 11" June, 2024.

2. Mr. Aveek Banerjee (DIN: 03488767) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company w.e.f 11" June, 2024, and was subsequently appointed as a Director of the
Company at the Annual General Meeting held on 30™ December, 2024. Further, he was
appointed as Whole-Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 17 March, 2025.

3. Mr. Varun Gujral (DIN: 10749980) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
w.e.f. 22" August, 2024 and was further regularized as the director of the Company in the
Annual General Meeting held on 30" December, 2024.

The provisions of Key Managerial Person pursuant to section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013
are applicable to the extent of appointment of Company Secretary.

The Composition of Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025, consists of the
following;:

Sr. No. Name DIN/PAN Designation

1. Mr, Naresh Baluja 09347493 Director

2. Mr. Aveek Banerjee 03488767 Whole-time Director
3. Mr. Varun Gujral 10749980 Director

¢) Other disclosures relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of Companies Act under Rule
8(5):
The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the rules made there under.

1 | Deposits accepted during year Nil
2 | Deposits remained unpaid or unclaimed at end of year Nil
3 | Amount of default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon | Nil
beginning of year
4 | Maximum amount of default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest | Nil
thereon during year
5 | Amount of default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon end | Nil
of year
6 | Number of cases of default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest | Nil
thereon beginning of year
7 | Maximum number of cases of default in repayment of deposits or payment of | Nil
interest thereon during year
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9 | Details of deposits which are not in compliance with requirements of Chapter | Not
V of Act Applicable

d) Details of significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting going concern status and company*s operations in future —
The Company has not received any such orders from regulators or courts or tribunals during the
year, which may impact the going concern status of the Company or its operations.

e) A statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made by the
Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors —
Provisions regarding evaluation of the Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company.

f) Disclosure for compliance with other statutory laws:
i) A statement that the company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of
Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The
policy has set guidelines on the redressal and inquiry process that is to be followed by aggrieved
woman, whilst dealing with issues related to sexual harassment at the workplace towards any
women. All employees (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) are covered under this

policy.

Further, the Company was not required to constitute an Internal Complaint Committee under The
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Further, it may be noted that during the year 2024-25, no grievance / complaint was reported.

(1) | Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints received 0
(ii) | Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints disposed off 0
(iii) | Number of Sexual Harassment Complaints pending beyond 90 days 0

ii) Statement that company has complied with Maternity Benefit Act:
The Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and has extended
all applicable benefits to eligible female employees during the year.

iii) Number of employees as on the closure of financial year:

Female
Male 3
Transgender 0
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PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
REFERRED TO IN SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 188:

The Company has not entered into transactions falling under section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with related parties as defined under Section 2(76) of the said Act and hence the Form AOC-2 is not
annexed with the report.

TRANSFER _OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

Since no unclaimed dividend amount is pending with the Company, no amount is required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

LOAN FROM DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES OF DIRECTOR:
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any loan from directors or relatives of the
directors.

VIGIL MECHANISM:
Provisions regarding vigil mechanism are not applicable to the Company.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL:

During the financial year under review, the Authorised Share Capital was increased from INR.
15,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fifteen Lakh Only) divided into 1,50,000 (One Lakh Fifty Thousand) Equity
shares of INR. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each to INR. 130,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One hundred
and thirty Crore) divided into 13,00,00,000 (Thirteen crore) Equity shares of INR. 10/- (Indian Rupees
Ten Only) each and the Paid-up Share Capital was also increased from INR. 3,00,000/- (Indian Rupees
Three Lakh Only) divided into 30,000 (Thirty Thousand) Equity shares of INR. 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten
Only) each to INR. 1,251,300,000 /- (Indian Rupees One Hundred Twenty-Five Crore Thirteen Lakh
Only) divided into 125,130,000 (Twelve Crore Fifty-One Lakh Thirty Thousand) Equity Shares of
INR.10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each. Further, the Company has neither allotted any sweat equity,
and bonus shares or shares under the employee stock option plan nor has bought back any shares or
securities.

COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Company is in compliance with the applicable mandatory secretarial standards.
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Building No. 10, 12th Floor, Tower-C
BSR&Co. LLP DLF Cyber City, Phase - Il

Gurugram - 122 002, India
Chartered Accountants Tel: 491 124 719 1000

Fax: +91 124 235 8613

Independent Aucitors Report

To the Members of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended 31 March 2025, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

a. The financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 March 2024 were audited by the
predecessor auditor who had expressed an unmodified opinion.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
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BSR &Co.LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matter stated in the
paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 and that the back-up of the books of account and other relevant books and papers
in electronic mode has not been kept on servers physically located in India on a daily basis.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 1 April 2025 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014,

The Company has been exempted from the requirement of its auditor reporting on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls (clause (i) of Section 143(3)).

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.
b.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(if)

the Note 28(d) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 28(e) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which does not have the feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility. Consequently, we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of the said
software. :

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-10002

Mohit Gupta

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 513681
Date: 23 September 2025 ICAI UDIN:25513681BMORHV3995
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) @) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company does not own any intangible assets. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable.

(@) (b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No discrepancy was
noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
during the period.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i) (@) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering trading of renewable energy, sale of
renewable energy certificates, and consuitancy in the renewable energy sector. Accordingly, it
does not hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets at any point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the year.
Accordingly, provisions of clauses 3(ji)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(@iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given
loans or provided guarantee or security and therefore the relevant provisions of Sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services

Page 5 of 8



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(vii) (a)

(b)

(viii)

(ix) (a)

(b)

()

(@

(e)

®

(9 (a)

(b)

rendered by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Income-Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Cess or other statutory dues have been regularly
deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Income-Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Cess or other statutory dues
were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

As explained to us, the company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess or other statutory dues, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. As
explained to us, the company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any
lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, the Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the period ended 31 March 2025. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is
not applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
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BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the period.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil
mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an Internal Audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act.

In our opinion and based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does
not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit system as per
Section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 13,184 thousands in the current financial year
and Rs 776 thousands in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2025 (Continued)

Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(00 The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.;101248W/W-1000

25Co
o Gungran) ¥
” Mohit Gupta
- Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No.: 513681
Date: 23 September 2025 ICAI UDIN:25513681BMORHV3995
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Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars Notes 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 4,028 -
Right-of-use assets 4 18,240 -
Income tax assets {net) 5 5,900 -
Other non-cwrrent assets 7 6,430 -
Total non-current assets (A) 34,598 -
Current assets
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 1,209,634 300
Other current assets 7 4,431 -
Total current assets (B) 1,214,065 300
Total assets (A+B) 1,248,663 300
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 8 1,251,300 300
Other equity 9 (32,035) (776)
Total equity (C) 1,219,265 (476)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 10 4,111 -
Total non-current liabilities (D) 4,111 -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Lease liabilities 10 15,017 -

Trade payables 11

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 286 28

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 3,871 685
Other current liabilities 12 6,113 63
Total current liabilities (E) 25,287 776
Total equity and liabilities (C+D+E) 1,248,663 300
Sumnmary of corporate information and material accounting policies 1 and 2

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

shalf of the Board of Directors of
Marketing India Private Limited

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fi gistragion N

248W/W-100022

/

Mohit Gupta
Partner

Membership No.: 513681

Place: Gurugram

Date: 9 Wm Zbl-(

Director
DIN: 03488767

Place: Pune

pate: 23 |04 }zo )5

Naresh Baluja
Director
DIN: 09347493

Place: Pune

Date: 93 }o‘i/w)ff



Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the period from

Particulars Notes 21 November 2023 to
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue
Other income 14 30,101 =
Total expenses 50,101 -
Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 15 28,895 -
Finance cost 16 1,285 -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 17 11,665 -
Other expenses 18 33,105 776
Total expenses 74,950 776
Loss before tax (24,849) (776)
Tax expenses 13
Current tax 6,410 -
Deferred tax - -
Total tax expenses 6,410 -
Loss for the year/ period (31,259) (776)
Other comprehensive income for the year/ period, net of tax - =
Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period, net of tax (31,259) (776)
Loss per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) 19
Basic (0.33) (25.87)
Diluted (033) (25.87)
Summary of corporate information and material accounting policies | and 2
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Engic Eagergy Marketing India Private Limited

Firm registration No.: 101248W/W-100022

Mohit Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 513681

Place: Gurugram Place: Pune

IN; U351 05PN2023PTC225802

Date: 2 % SE‘?&J“J’O‘L«D—”)—C Date: 2.} [oqilol 5

Naresh Baluja
Director
DIN: 09347493

Place: Pune

o 2.3 [0 7[2025



Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from

21 November 2023 to

31 March 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities .
Loss before tax (24,849) (776)
Finance cost 1,285 -
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 11,665 -
Operating loss before working capital changes (11,899) (776)
Adjustment for change in working capital:
Increase in trade payables 3,444 713
Increase in other current liabilities 6,050 63
Increase in other current assets (4,431) =
Cash used in operations (6,836) )
Income tax paid (including interest on income tax) (12,310) -
Net cash used in operating activities (A) (19,146) (0)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipments (4,750) -
Additions to security deposit (6,430
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (11,180) -
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of share capital 1,251,000 300
Payment of lease liability (including interest) (11,340) =
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 1,239,660 300
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,209,334 300
Cash and cash equivalents as on beginning of the year/ period 300 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year/period 1,209,634 300
1 Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:
As at As at
Cash and cash equivalents includes: 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 1,209,634 300
Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 6) 1,209,634 300

2 The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' set out in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'

3 Refer note and 25 for movement of financing activities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm registratjierfNo.. 101248W/W-100022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
~Xlarketing India Private Limited

Naresh Baluja
Director
DIN: 09347493

Mohit Gupta
Parmer

Membership No.: 513681 DIN: 03488767

Place: Pune

b 33 09202

Place: Pune

Date: 2 3 IO? IZD)_S

Place: Gurugram

Date:2 % SWM s



Engie Energy Marketing India Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All in INR th s, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at 1 April 2024
Share issued during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2025

Bal asat2l N ber 2023
Share issued during the period
Balance as at 31 March 2024

B. Other equity

Balance as at 1 April 2024

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, (net of tax)
Balance as at 31 March 2025

Balance as at 21 November 2023

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income, (net of tax)
Balance as at 31 March 2024

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registranon 3

248WAW-100022
Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership No.: 513681

Place: Gurugram

Date: 2 2, &?WQ_OQ-{

Amount
300
1,251,000
1,251,300
300
300
Reserves and Surplus
Retained Other c‘omprehenswe Total
earnings income
(776) - (776)
(31.259) - (31.259)
(32,035) - (32.035)
(776) - (776)
(776) - {776)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Engi¢Enerdty Marketing India Private Limited

DIN: 03488767

Place: Pune

Date: 2 3 [Oq[;o)‘s'

Naresh Baluja
Director
DIN: 09347493

Place Pune

2u2.2[03 /2025



Engic Encrgy Marketing India Private Limited
Noles to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(it amounts i INR thowsand, unless other ise stated)

n

2.

b

Corporale Information
Engsic Encryy Marketing [ndia Private Limited (EEMT or ‘the Company') having CIN: U35 105PN2023PTC225%02 is a private company domiciled in Indiz and incorporated under the proy isions of the
Companics Act, 2013 ('the Act’). The Coinpany was incorporated on November 21, 2023. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Engic Group Parlicipations SA, which is ulti v held by
Engic SA EEMT connccl assels to customers and markets through Lailor-made power supply solutions The Company provides erergy & energy management solutions o support clienls in Lransitioning o
a carbon-neuiral ccononiy

Bauis of preparation

Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in with Indian A i (Ind AS) notificd under the C ics (Indian A i Rules, 2015 (as
amended from Lime Io lime) nolificd under section 133 of the Companics Act 2013 ('Act) and other relevant prov isions of the Act and prescntation requirements of Division IT of Schedule I1T 10 the
Companics Act. 2013. (Ind AS compliant Schedule IT1), as applicable Lo the financial stalements

The accurmulated losscs of the Compamy as at 31 March 2025 are INR 32,035 (housand. The Company has incurred losses amounting to INR 31.259 thousand during the year ended 31 March 2025.
which has resulled in the erosion of the net worth of the Compamy. However, the net worth and working capilal posilion stands positive. The Company is ycl to commence its business operations. During
the year, mamagement was in the process of securing all necessary statulory and regulatory approval lo busincss ions and wced business operati to the ycar end.
Therclore, the financial statements have been prepared on a gowng concern basis

Since. the Compay was i on2l 2025 and i previous year mumber are for the period from 21 2023 (date of i ion) lo 31 March 2024 as compared to

the current year numbers w hich arc for the full vear ended 31 March 2025 and accordingly the comparatss ¢ figures arc nol comparable

Busis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. cxeept for the following asscls and liabililies which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:
= Certain financial asscts and liabilities measured at fair value (refer ing policy ding financial i )

Funetional and presentation curreney

The financial slalements are prescnted in Tndian Rupees (TNR). which is also the Compamy's unictional currency All amounts have been rounded 10 the nearest Ihousands. unless other isc indicated

Use of judgements and estimates

The ion of financial in v with [nd AS requires the (0 make | i and ions that affect the reporied amonnts of revenues. expenses. assels
and liabiliues aud the discl of fal at the end of the reporung peniod  Although these estimates are bascd on the management's best knowledge of curreut events and actions
n about Ilese ions and esti could result in the oulcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carm ing amounts of assets or liabilities in fulwre periods

Estimates and underly ing assumplions arc res iewed on an ongoing basis Revisions 10 estimales are recognized properly

(i) Judpements

There are no judgemenits made in applying accounting policics that have the most significant elfects on the amounts recognized in (he financial statements

(i) Assumptivn and estimation uncertai

about ions and estimati i al the reporting date hat lave a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment 10 the carry ing amounts of assets and liabihtics within the
next fincial year is included in the following noles:
-Note 13 recogmtion of deferred tax assels avaulabiliny of future taxable profit against which deductible icmporary differences and tax losses carricd forward can be utihzed

Fulr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an assel or paid (o Lransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parhcipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction o sell the asset or Lransfer the liability Lakes place cither:

(a) Tnthe principal markel for Lhe asscl or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the assel or liability

The principal or the most advanlageous markel must be accessible by the Company The fair value of an asscl or a liability is d using the ions that market ici would usc when
pricing the asset or liabulity. assuming that markel participanis act in teir cconomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of 2 non-financial assct takes inlo account a market participant's ability lo generate cconomic benefits by using the asscl in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another
markel participant that would use Lhe assct in its highcst and besl usc

The Company uscs valuation techniques that are appropriale in the circumslances and [or w hich sufMicient data are available (o measurc fair value, maximising the use of relevant obscrvable inputs and
minmising the use of unobservable inputs

All asscls and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial stalements atc categoriscd within the fair value hierarchy. described as follows. based on Lhe towest level input that
is significant to the fair valuc measurement as a whole:

Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markels for identical asscts or libilitics

Level 2 — Valualion lechniques [or which the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measuremnent is dircclly or indirectly obsenable

Level 3 — Valualion techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant (o the fair value measurement is unobservable

For asscts and liabilitics thal arc recogmised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between leels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
calcgorisation (based on the lowest level inpul Lhal is significant to the fair value measuremcnl as a whole) al Ihe cnd of cach reporting period

Current/non-current classification
Bascd on the time invelved between the i of asscls for ing and Lheir isation in cash and cash cquivalents, the Company has identificd twelve months as its operating cycle for
determining current and non currenl classification of asscts and liabilitics in the balance sheet

Material accounting policics

Forcign currency transactivns

T ions in forcign ics arc into the i currency of the company at Ihe exchange rates al Lhe dates of the transaclions or an average raie if the average ralc approxinales the
actual rate al the date of the i M v assets and liabiliti inated in forcign ies are latcd into the forcign currency at the exchange rates al the reporting datc Non-
monctary assets and liabilitics that are measurcd al fair value in a forcign currency are Lranslated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the Fair value was determined. Foreign currency

cxchange differences are generally recogmsed in profil or loss

Recognition of interest income or expense
Inierest income or expense is recopnised
Thie ‘effective interest mie' is e rate Uat exactly discounts estimated future cash pay ments or receipts through the expected Life of the financial instrument Loz
- the gross carrying amount of Lhe lnancial assct: or
-~ 1lic amortised cost of 1he financial liability
In caleulating interest inconie and cxpense. We cffective interest rate is applied fo the gross carmying amount of the assct (wlicn Lhe assel is noi credit
However. for Mnancial assets that have become credit-impaired subscquent Lo inilial recogmition. interes! income is caleulated by applying the cfectiv
ussel. IT the assct is 1o longer credit-impaired. then the calculation of interest income revemis 1o the gross basis.

impaired) or o the anortised cost of Lhe liabitily.
interest rale lo the amortised cost of the financial
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Income tax
Tncome 1ax compriscs current and deferred lax 1L is recogmsed mi profil or loss excepl 1o the extent (hat it relales 10 a business combination. or items recogmised dircclly in cquily or in other
comprehensne income

Current income 1ax

Current tax compnises 1he expected fax payable or recenable on (he taxable mconie or loss for the year and amy adjusinient (o the fax payable or recenable m respect of previous years The amount of
current lax payable or receivable is Ui best estimate of the Lax amount expected to be pard or received that reflects uncertainty: related to income taxcs, if amy 1L is measured using (ax rales cnacled or
substantively enacted at the reporting date

Current lax asscls and liabilitics arc offsct only 1f there 15 legally enforecable nght 1o sci ofT the recognised amounts, and it is intended 1o reabise the assel and scltle the liabiliy on a net basis or

simultancously

Deferred tas

Deferred tax is recopmsed in respect of femporans differences between tlie carmymg amounts of assets and labiliues for financial reporung purposes and (e correspording amounts uscd for axation
purposes. Deferred tax is also recogmised in respect of carried forward (@x losses and L credils

Delerred tix usscts awre recognised for unused tax losses. wnused Lax credits and deductible lemporun differeuces lo the extent thatis probable that futune txable profits will be anaitable against which
they can be used Future taxable profils are determined bascd on the reversal of relesant taxable temporany differences If the amonnt of Laxable temporany differences 1s insuficicnl (o recognise a
deferred Lax assel m full. then the furure taxable profits. adjusied for reversals of existing lemporary differeices are considered. based on Lhe business plans. Deferred tax assels are reviewed al cach
reporting date and arc reduced fo the extent that is no longer probable that the related 1ax benefit will be realised: such reductions are reversed wbn Lhe probubility of future tixable profits improves
Deferred tax is measured at the fax rales that are expected lo apply 10 the peniod when the asset is reahsed o the liability 1s scitled, based on the laws that have been cnacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting dinte.

Tle measurenient of deferred 1ax reflects (he tax consequences Hat would follow from thie nanner in which the Company expects. at the reporting dile, (o recover or setle 1he camying amount of ils
amsets and habidimes

Deferred ta asscls and liabilitics are ofTset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offsel current tx liabilities and ussets, and they relute to income kixes levied by the same tax authority on te sune
laxable cnlify. or on difTerent tax entities. but hex intend 1o selile curreni 1ax habihiics and assels o a net basis or (heir (ax asscts and liabilines will be realised simultancously

Property, plant amd equipment

Recognition and measurement

Thie cost of an ilem of property plant und cquipment slall be recognised as anvassctif und only ifit is probuble that fulure cconomic berkelits associaled with the ilem w
cosl of the 1tem can be measured rehably

Ticms ol propery plant and equipment (including capiial work 1n process) are measured af cost. which mcludes capy
impairmient fosscs. Freehold land 1s carned ai istoncal cost less ame accunmilated imparment losses

Cost of an ilem of property. plant and cquipment comprises its purchase price, including import dutics and non-refundable purchase tasvs. afler deducting trade discounts aid rebales. am directly
atinbutable cost 1F brnging the 1l Lo its working condition for its intended use and estimated cosls of dismantling and reimos ing the 1tem and resloring the site on w hichit 1s Tocated

1f sigmificani parls of an item of property plant and equpment have differcnt useful Ines. (hen ey are accounied for as separate ilenis ( major conponcnls ) of property, plant and equipment

Am gain or loss on disposal of i item of propenty . panl atd cquipnient is recognised in profit or loss.

11 ow (o Lhe Compuny and ke

iized borrowimg cosls fess laled and 2 ac

Disposals
Anitem of property - plant zinid equipment and am signilicant pant initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when o Tuture ceonomic benefits are expected trom its use. Am pains or loss
arising from 1l retirenient or disposal of properts . plant and cqui are d ined as the diffe ¢ betwcen the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of (he asset and are recognised in the

slatement of profil and loss on the date of retiremicnt or disposal

Subscequent expenditure
Subscquenl expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefs ass

cd with the expenditurc will low 1o the Comipany arl (e cost of the ilem can be micasured reliably

Depreciation

Depreciation is caleukitted on e vost of ileins of property . plant and cquipment luss kit estimaled residuwsl values using (e str p-line method oy er their estimated usefl lives. and is generally

The esumated uscful lives of property . plant and equipmeit for current aud comparative periods as follows:

Class ol ssvicts Munageniet’s extimate of nveful life Liseful Tife us per Schedulbe 11
Compuzcr and Accctoncs 5 3
OfTice equipnients 5 i

Depreciation methods. useful lives and residual lives are reviewed al cach reporting date and adjusied if appropriate. Based ou lecluical evaluation and consequent adsice, the nunagement belicves that

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gres rise (o a financial assct for onc enluy and a financial habihiy or cquity mstrumenl for another enity

Financial 2
(i) Recognition and measurement

Trade reccivables are mitially recognised when they are originaled  All olher fnanc
pro isions of 1he instrument

A financial assel (unless 10 1s a trade receivable withoul a significant compenent) or [inaictal lability is iulially measured at fair value plus or munus, an e oot at FVTPL. (ransaclion cosls that arc
dircctly altnbutable to 11s acquisition or issuc. A trade receivable without a sig anl financing is initially at the g price

Lts

| asscts and financial lisbihies arc initially recogmsed when the company becanes a party to U coutractual

tivn and Subsequent measurement

Financial asse(s

On iniial recognition i linicial assct is classificd as measured n:
~amortiscd cosl:

-FVOCI - debt imcstment:

-FVOCT - cquity inestment: or

-FVTPL

I recognition unless the Compiny changes its businiess modcl for man ng fimncial assels. in which cuse all affected finuncial assets are

Fimincial assels are nol reclussificd subsequent to tieir inili
reclassificd on U first day of the first reporiing penod following the change in the business model

A linancial assel 1s measured at anwriised cost if it meets both of tie follow ing condilions aud is not des
-it is lield within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assls (o collect contrsctl cash Mows: and

-ils contraciual ferins give nse on specified dales to cash Mows that are solely pay ments of principal and inierest on (he pancipal amount outstanding

wled as at FVTPL:

A debt im estment is measured at FVOCT if it nicets both of the following conditions and is nol designated as at FVTPL:
-il 15 held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bolh collcctng contracrual cash flows and selling financial asscls: and
are solely puy ments of principal urd interest on the principal amount oulstanding

-its contractual lerms give rise an specificd dates 1o cash Mows

rrevocably clect lo present subscquent clinges in (hie unestment's (air value 1 OCL This clection is made on

On initial recognilion of an cquity mvestment thal is not licld for Lrading. the Comparm w
an investiment-by -im estment basis.

Al financial assels not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above are measured at FVTPL
Financial assets Ui are held for tading or are managed and whose performance is cvaluated on a fair valuc basis are measured al FVTPL

g 4
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Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this asscssment, ‘pnncipal’ is defined as the fair vatuc of the financial assel on inital recogmition. ‘Inferes’ 15 defined as consideration for the ine value of moncy and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for ollicr basic lending nisks and costs (¢ 2 Tiquidity risk and administrative cosls). as well as a profit margin
1n assessing whether the contraciual cash Mows are solels pay ments of principal and inlerest, the Company considers Lhe contractual temis of he instrument. This includes assessing wliether Lhe financinl
assel contains a contractual term that could change the timing or mnount of contraciual cash Mlows such that 1t would not meet this condition. fn making Ihs assessment. the Compam considers:
~contingent events that wowld cliange the amot or timing ol cash fows:

-termis that niy adjust (e contmctual coupon rale, including yariable-rale features:

=prepay ment and extension features: and

-lerns tleu limil the Compam's claim Lo cash Nows [rom specificd asscls (¢.g now-recourse fcatwres).

ancial assels - Subsequent measurement and g: and losses

~Fimncial assets al FVTPL:- These asscls wre subscquently measurcd al fuir value. Net gains and losses, including amy interest dividend income, arc recognised in profit or loss

~Financial assels al amortised cost <These asscts arc subscquently measurcd at amorttsed cost using the cffective interest method The amortised cost 18 reduced at by impairment losses Inierest income
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairmicul are recognised are in profil or loss Ay gain or loss an derecoghition is recognised in profit or loss

-Debt ins estments al FVOCT - These assets are subsequently measured al fair salue. Interest income caleulaled using Uk efMective interest method. forcign exehange gains ind losses and impainment are
recogmsed m profit or loss Other net gawns and losses are recogmised in OCIL On pains and losses. accumulated m OC are reclassified to profil or loss

Equity Tm estimients at FVOCT:- These assels are sub Iy al fair value i losscs {and reversal of mpairement losses) on equity investinents measured al FVOCT are not reporied
separately from olier ctianges in fair value. Dividends urc recognised q1s income in profit or loss unless Ui dividend clearly represents a recoveny of part of the cost of the imestment. Other net ¢
lasses arc recogmsed in OCT and are vot reclassificd (o profil or loss

ities - Classil i b measurcment and gains and losses

Financial liabililics are classificd as measurcd au amortised cost or EVTPL. A financial liabilits is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as beld-for-trading. it is a derivative or il is designated as such
on inuial recogmition Financial liabilitics al FVTPL arc measured at fair valuc and nel gains and losses. including amy inlcrest expense, are recogmsed in profit or loss. Other financial liabilitics arc
subscquently measured at amorlised cost using the cffective interest method Interest expense and foreign exchange sains and losses are recogiised in profit or loss. Ay gain or loss ou derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

(iii) De-recngnition

inancial 4 s

Tlc Compamy derecogmses a financral asset when the contraciual nglits 1o the cash fows from the fnancial asscl expire ot 1 transfers he rghts o recene e contractual cash ows ma m
which cither substanually all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or the Company neither transfers nor relains substantrally all of the nsks and rewards off
ow nership and il does wol relain control of the fimancial assel

Company enters mto imnsachions whereby 1t transfers ussets recognised on 11s balance sheet bul retains cither ull or substanually all of the nsks aud rewards of the transferred asscis In these cases, the

assels are not derecognised,

Financial liabi
The Company derecognises a financial Tiability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cincelled or expire. The Compuny also derccognises 3 financial fiabilits when its tenms are modified
wd tlic caslt Mows of (he modified liabilits are substantially difTerent. in which case a new fimancial Dbased on the modilied terms is recognised at fair valuc,

d (i ing my non~cash assets trunsferred or liabilics asswmied) is

On derecognition of a [tncial tabilit. the difference between (he cam ing amount extingui and the i ion pi
recopmsed 1o profit or loss

iv) Offsctting
Financial asscts and Mwancial liabilities ane offset and the nel amount presented in the
1 ntends eithier to settle them on a el basis or Lo reuhise tie assel and seitle the hability simultancously

alance slicet when and only wliei the Company currenily liss a legally enforeeable right lo set ofT the amounts and

Provisiuns {other than employee henefils)
Provisions are recogmised whien the Compamy has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. 11 is probable that an ontflow of resources cmbody ing economic benefils will be
required Lo scitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Expected future ing losses are not prosided for

Where the Company expects some or all of the expendilure required to seitle a provision will be reimbursed by anotber party . the reinburseinent is recognised whei and only when. 15 virtually certam
that reimbursemient will be received il the entify setiled Uic obligation. The reimburseiient is treated as a sepinile asset

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash fows al a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessnicnts of Lhe Lime value of money and the risks specifically 1o Lic liability. The
unwinding of Lhe discount is recognised as fimance cost

Leases

Alinception of a contrict. the Company asscsses whether a contrict is. or conkuns, i lcase. A comtracl is. or cont
period of tink in exchange (or consideration

To asscss whellicer a contract camves s the mght 1o control the use of an idenuficd asscl the Company assess whetlier:

ns. a Icasc i the contract comvey s the right to control the use of an identificd assct tor a

> 1he contract s olves the use of an identificd asset — this may be spectfied exphicithy or implicitly and should be physically distinict or represent substantially atl of the capacity of a physically distinct
asscl I the supplicr has a substantive sub: on ight. tien the asset is not identified:

« the customner lus the right (o obtiin substantially all of Uk ecconomic benefits from usc of the ussel throughout the period of use: and

= the cusiomer has the right to direct the use of the asset when it has L decision-making nghis that are most relesant o chan how and for what purpose {he assct

is used. The custonier has the riht 1o dircet the nse of Wie assed if cither the customer las the mzht (o operate (he assel: or the cuslomer designed the assel ina way that predetemines how and for what
purpose it will be used throughout the period of use

Asa lessce
At commencement or on modification of a contmel tht contains a lease componenL the Company allocates tlie consideration in the contracl to cach lease component on the basis of its relative
stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Company has clected not to scparale noirlease compouients aud account for the lease and von-lease componenus as a single lease component

Thie Company recognises a right-ol-usc asscl and the lease date. The dght-ol- assel is initially measured at cost. which comprises U initial amount of the lease
liabihty adjusicd for am Icase pay incnls made al or before the commencement date. plus any initial direct cosls incurred and un estitmate of costs lo dismuntle and remove the underhying assct or 1o
restore tlie underly ing assct or the site on which it is located. Jess any lease incentives received

Tl right-ol- asset is ly depreciated using the izli-line method from the commencement date o the carlier of the end of the uscful life of the right-of-use assct or the end of the lease
tenn unless the Icasc ransfers ow nership of the underying assel to the Compamy by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects at the Company will exercisc i purchuse
oplion [n that case the nght-ol-use asset will be depreciated oser the useful life of Lhe wnderly ing asset. which is detenmined on the sane basis as those of property and cquipment Tn addstion. the right-of-

use assel is periedically reduced by impainnent losscs, if any. and adjusied for cerain remeasurenicnts of i Icase liabiliny

it in the lease or, if that ratc cannol

The lease liabilwy is imiially ncasured at the prescmt value of the lease ments {hat are nol paid at 1he comnencement date, discounted using the inierest rate impl
be readity delermined. Lhe Company's increinental borrowing rate. Generally. the Company uses ils increuental borrowing rate as the discount rate

The Company ines ils i ‘ing rale by oblaining interest rates [rom various external financing sources and makes certain adjusuncnts (o reflect the terms of the lease and (ype of the
asscl leased
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k

Lease pay menis included in (he measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

« fixed pay ments. inchuding in-substance fixed payments:

«variable lease pay ments that depend on an index or a mte. initially nwasured using the index or raie as at the commencenient date:

~ amounts expecled Lo be payable under a residual value guaranice: and

« the exercise price wider a purchasc option tiat the Company is reasonably cerain Lo exercise, leasc pay menls in an optional renewal period if the Compain is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
oplion. and penaltics for carly tcrmination of a lease unless the Comipany is reasonably certain not lo terminate carly.

The lease liabslity is measured at amonised cost using the cffective inerest method It 1s remeasured when there is a change in future lease paymenls arising from a change in an index or rate, il there is a
change in the Compam's estimate of the amount expected 1o be payable under a residual value guaraniee, if the Company changes its asscssment of whether it will exercise a purchase. extension or
lennination option or if there is a rey ised i-substance fived Icasc pay’ mcnl

in this way. a is made 1o the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset. or is recorded in profit or loss 1f the carrying amount of the right-of-

s assed hos béen roducad 1o sero,

Short-term leascs and leases of low-valuc assels
The Compamy has clected not to recogrise tight-of-usc assets and lease liabilinies for leases of low-value assets and shor-t Ieases. i ing T The Company recogniscs the lease
pay ments associated with thesc leases as an expense in profit or loss on 4 striight-line basis over Lie fease lerm

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalent in llie balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-termi depostis with an original naturify of three months or less. w lich arc subject o an insignificant risk of
changes in value

For the purpose of the statement of cash Mows. cash and cash cquivalents consist of cash balance on hand. cash balance al banks and short-lcom deposils. as defined above. nel of outstanding bank
overdrafis as they arc considered an integral part of the Compamy 's cash management

Contingent liability
Contingent liability is a possible obligauon arising from past evcnis and whose exi will be only by the or Tence of one or more uncertam fulure cvenls not wholky
within the control of the entity or a present obligation thal ariscs from past cvents but is not recognize because it is not probable that an oulflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be
required 1o settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient Tiability. The compam does nol recognize 4 contingent liability but discloses its cxistence in the
financial slalements

Contingent Asscts
Contingent asset is not recognised in financial statements since it may resull in the recog)
related assel is not a conlingent asset and is recognized

1 of income that may neyer be realised. However. when the realisation of incomie is s inually certain then lhe

Provisions. contingent liabilitics and contingent assels arc reviewed at cach Balance sheet date

Earninps per share {EPS)
Basic Earning Per Share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit(or loss) for Il vear aunbutable to the owners of the Company by the weighted average mimber of cquity shares outstanding during the ycar

Diluled Earning Per Share
Diluled EPS amounts is computed by dividing the profil (considered i determination of basic camings per share) afier considenng the effect of inlerest and other financing costs or income (net of
attributzble taxes) associated with dilutive patential cquity shares that would haye been issued upon com crsion of all dilutive potential equity shares

Events oceurring after the Balanee Sheet date
Tmipact of events occurnng afer the balance sheet date that provide addili information ially cfMecting the d ination of the amounts relating to condilions existing at the balance sheet date are
adjusted o respective assels and liabilitics

Recent accounting pronvuncements

Ministry of Corporate AfTairs ("MCA™) nolifics nc\\ standards or amcndmcnls 10 the existing under C (Indian A i Rules as issued from time 1o lime. On 7 May
2025 MCA issucd the C jcs (Indian A Rules. 2023, which made certain amendments o Tnd AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchunge Rales. cffeclive
from | April 2025, Tikse define currency ility and include guidance on estinating spot exchange mites when a currency is not exclangeable. Tle Conpam does not expect this

amendment (o have amy significant impact in its financial stateinents

[This page has been lefl blank intentionally|
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Computer Office and other

Particulars equipments otk
Gross block

Balance as at 21 November 2023 # - -
Additions during the period - - =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 = I =
Additions during the year 3,534 1,216 4,750
Balance as at 31 March 2025 3,534 1,216 4,750
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 21 November 2023 - - =
Additions during the period z = “
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - z
Additions during the year 560 162 722
Balance as at 31 March 2025 560 162 722
Net block

Balance as at 31 March 2024 = = 5

Balance as at 31 March 2025 2,974 1,054 4,028
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4 Right-of-use-assets

. Leasehold

Particulars Total
property
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2024 - -
Additions 29,183 29,183
Balance as at 31 March 2025 29,183 29,183
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April 2024 - -
Depreciation for the year 10,943 10,943
Balance as at 31 March 2025 10,943 10,943
Net Block

Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 18,240 18,240

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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H

{a,

(h)

[(9

(d

()

Income tax assels, net

Advance income tax [net of provision for income tax: 6.4 10 thousand (31 March 2024, Nil))

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
- in currenl accounls

The Company's exposure to credil risk are disclosed in note 23

Other assets

Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise stated

Secunty deposit

Prepay menl

Balance with government authonilics
Advance (o vendors

Equity share capital

Authorised

130,000,000 (31 Murch 2024: 150.000) equiry shares of INR 10 cach

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up

125.130.000 (31 March 2024: 30.000) cquity shares of INR 10 cach

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company las onc class of equily sharcs with par value of INR 10 per share. Each sharcholder is cligible Tor one vole per slare with the right to receiy e per share dis idend declared by the Conmpamy. [n the event of liquidation. the

Asal Asat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

5.900 -

5.900 -

Asat Ay al
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1.209.634 300
1,209,634 300
Non-current Current
Asal Asat Asal As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

6430 - - =)

- - 500 -

- - 3.908 -

. . n M

6430 = 4431 -
As at Ay al

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

1.300.000 1.500
1,300,000 1500
1.251.300 300
1,251,300 k]

equity sharcholders are eligible lo receive the remaining asscls of the Company afler distribution of all amounts, in to their
of shares ing at the and cnd of the year/ period:
As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of sharcs Number of shares
Amuuni
(Absolute) A (Abuslute) e

Authorised
Equity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid
Balance as at beginning of Lhe vear/ period 150000 1.500 - -
Add: Increased during the ycar/ period 129 BE0HH) 1.298.500 130.000 B30l
Equity shares at the ¢nd of the year/period 130,000,000 1,300,000 150,000 1,500
Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Equity shares of INR 10 cach fully paid
Balance as al beginning of the year/ period 30,000 300 - -

; Shares issucd during the year/ peried 125.100.000 1.251.000 30.000 300

ity shares at the end of the year/perivd 125,130,000 1,251,300 30,000 Jue
Details of shares held by hulding company and/or their subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Number of shares N . Number of shares .
% hul
(Absolute) % holding (Absolutc) > hulding

Equily shares of INR 10 ¢ach fully paid
Engic Group Participations SA (Engic Energy India Pyt Lid. held the shares as an 31
March 2024) & its nomince* 125.130.000 100% 30.000 100%

* Onc cquity share held by Engic Encrygy India Pyt Lid. (w.e.f. 3 May 2024). as nomince of Engic Group Participations SA

Particulars of sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares

Equity shares of TNR 10 cach fully paid-up and held by:
Engic Group Participations SA (Engic Energy India Pyt Lid held the shares as on 31

March 2024) & its nominec*

* One cquity sturc beld by Engic Encryy Indsa Py, Lid. (w.c . 3 May 2024), as nomince of Engic Group Participations SA

As at 31 March 2025

Ay at 31 March 2024

Number of shares " " Number of shares O T
% holdi
(Absalute) 7 holding (Absslute) o holding
125.130.000 100% 30.000 100%

The Company has nol issued any shares withoul cash consideration or anv bonus shares and there has not been any buv-back of sharcs during the current and immediately preceding previous period

Sharcholding of promoters

As at 31 March 2025

As at 31 March 1024

Equity sharcs of INR 10 cach fully paid-up and held by:
Engic Group Participations SA (Engic Energy India Pvi Lid. held the shares as on 31

March 2024) & iits nomince™

Number of N rsh Change in %age sharchalding of
shares % holding ""(‘Ab:;:lln:c;ms % holding prumoters

(Absolute)

125,130,000 100% 30,000 100% 100%

* Onc cquity share held by Engic Enery India Pyt Lid. (w ¢ £. 3 May 2024), as nominee of Engic Group Participations SA
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9 Other equity Reserves and Surplus
Retai_ncd Other c‘umprehcnsive Total
cearmings income
Balance as at 1st April 2021 (776) = (776)
Loss for the ycar (31.259) - (31.259)
Other comprehensive income. (net of ax) - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 (F2.035) - (32.035)
Balanee s a1 25t November 2023 - - =
Loss for the penod (776} . (776)
Other comprehensive income. (nct of tax) - - -
Balance as at 31s1 March 2024 (776) - {1763

Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained varnings
The said balance represents the profil/ loss balance as at reporting date, Posiuve balance denoles surplus for the Campany whereas negalis ¢ balance denotes deficit for the Company
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10 Lease Habitities

Non-current Current
Axat Asat Asal Avat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Leasc habulitics (refer notc 25) 4111 - 15.017
4,111 . 15,017 -
11 Trade payables
As at Ay at
31 March 202§ 31 March 2024
= Tolal oulstanding ducs of small enlerpriscs and micro enlerprises 286 2B
- Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than small cnierpriscs and micro enlerprises 3870 685
4.157 713
Details of ducs tu micrv and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Asal Asgal
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of cach accounting period
Principal amount duc lo micro and small cnicrprises 185 28
Trerest due an abpve ! =
The amount of intercst paid in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Acl 2006 along with the amourts of the pay ment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach accounting - -
The amount of interest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but bevond the appoinied day during the peried) but without adding the intercst ¥ -
specificd under the MSMED Act 2006
The amount of inlerest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting penod & -
The amount of further inleresl remaining duc and payable even in the succeeding periods. until such date when the inlerest ducs as above are actually paid to the small enterprise under - -
Trade payable ageing schedule as on 31 March 2025
Linbilled Nat due <1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year >4 year Total
Undisputed Dues (MSMEs) 24 - 262 - - - 286
Undisputed Ducs (Others) 1.646 - 2,225 - - - A871
Disputed ducs (MSMEs) - - - - - - -
Dispuled dues (Others) - - - - - = -
1,670 - 2AKT - - = 4157
Trade payable ageing schedule as on 31 March 2024
Unbifled Not due < 1 sear 1-2 year 1-3 vear > J year Tutal
Undisputed Dues (MSMEs) - - 28 - - > 28
Undisputed Ducs (Others) - - G683 - - - 685
Disputed ducs {MSMEs) - - - - = - -
Disputed dues (Others) - - - - - - -
- - T3 > - - 713
12 Other current liabilitics
As at Asal
31 March 202§ 31 March 2024
Startory ducs 5377 63
Employ ce Puyables 736 -
6,113 63

| This page has been left blank inteniionaliy|
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13 TIncome lax

a) The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2025 and period from 21 November 2023 (date of incarporation) to 31 March 2024 are:

b)

c)

Statement of profit and loss:

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Tax Expense:

{a) Current tax expense 6,410 -
(b) Deferred tax expense - -
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 6,410 -

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting toss multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year/period ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2025

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax from continuing operations {24.849) (776)
Accounting profit/ (loss) before income tax (24,849) (776)
At India’s statutory income tax rate of 27.82% (31 March 2024: 26%) 2782% (6,913) 0% -
Preoperalive expenses -5362% 13.323 0% -
At the income tax rate of 27.82% (31 March 2024: 26%) 6,410 -
Tncome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 6,410 -

Deferred tax

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Deferred tax asset relates to the following:
Lease liabilities 5,321 =
Property, plant and equipment 201
5,522 -

Deferred tax liability relates to the following:
Right-of-use assets (5.074) =

(5,074) -
Total deferred tax asset/ (liability), net 448 -
Net deferred tax asset recognised - -

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only ifit has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority

The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of INR 448 thousands as at year ended 31 March 2025 (Nil as at year ended 31 March 2024), because il is not probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the Company can use the benefits therefrom

{This page has been left blank intentionally]
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14

16

17

18

Other income

Interest income on deposits with bank

Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus (refer note 21)
Contribution to provident fund

Finance cost

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (refer note 4)

Other expenses

Lepal and professional expenses
Payrent to auditor*

Traveling and conveyance
Membership and subscriptions
Office support services
Corporate event expenses

Bank charges

Rates and taxes

Miscellaneous expense

*Payment to auditors

Statutory audit (including taxes)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

50,101

50,101

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

27,695
1,200

28,895

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

1,285

1,285

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

722
10.943

11,665

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

3,174 33
716 625
1,755 =
4,842 -
1,215 -
6,381 -
23 -
14,012 118
987 =
33.105 776
For the year ended Eogthielpemagipat
31 March 2025 21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024
716 625
716 625
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19 Loss per share ('LPS’)
Basic LPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the ighted average ber of Equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted LPS amounts are calculated by dividing the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares

outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basic and diluted LPS

For the period from

F‘; ‘;: ye:rzt)l;t;ed 21 November 2023 to
are 31 March 2024

Total operations for the year/ period
Loss after tax, attributable to the equity holders (31,259) (776)
Loss for calculation of basic and diluted LPS (31,259) (776)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted LPS (in absolute numbers) 93,940,685 30,000
Loss per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each) : (absolute amount per share)
Basic (0.33) (25.87)

(0.33) (25.87)

Diluted

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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20 Operating segments

An op g scgment is a p of the Company that cngages in business aclivitics from which it may cam and incur includi and exp that relate to transactions with any' of the
Company’s othcr components, and for which discrete financial infc ion is lable All i ’ ing results are reviewed regularly by the Company”s Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) to
make decisions about to be all d to the and assess their performance

The Company is cngaged in the busincss of rading clectricity. providing consultancy services. and sale of RECs However the Company has not started its operations Considering the nature of the Company's business
and operations. there are no scparate reportabl i in ¢ with the requi of Indian A ing Standard 108. 'Operating Si ! referred in to Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and C ies {Indian A ing Slandards) A | Rules, 2016 and hence, there arc no additional discls to be provided other than those already provided in the financial
stalements The Company’s principal i revenue and decisi king functions arc located in India and there are no revenue and non-current assets outside Tndia

| This page has been left blank intentionally|
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21

(b)

(©)

(i)

Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship

Related parties where control exists
Ultimate holding company Engie SA

Holding company Engie Group Participations SA
Engie Energy India Pvt. Ltd. (till 3 May 2024)

Key management personnel having significant influence over the company

Nature of relationship Name of related party
Whole-time director Aveek Banerjee (DIR - 03488767)
Director Naresh Baluja (DIR - 09347493 )
Director Varun Gujral (DIR - 10749980)

Key management personnel compensation

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2025
Short term employee benefits 17,557

Related party transactions other than those with Key managerial personnel

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the period from
21 November 2023 to
31 March 2024

Fresh issue of equity shares
Engie Energy India Private Limited -
Engie Group Participations SA 1,251,000

[This page has been left blank intentionally]
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22 Financial instruments - Fair values

b

The carrying value and fair value of financial rnsbrisments by catepitics 24 4 halanos shoet dale e as follows

As at 31 March 2025 Carrving Amouni Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amartised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financiul assets not measured at fuir value

Cash and cash cquivalents - - 1209 634 120964 - - -
- - 1,209,634 120860 - - =
Financial liabilivies mt measured a1 fair valoe
Lease habilities - - 19.128 19,128 - - -
Trade pavables ¥ % 4157 4,157 : 5 -
- - 13285 13285 = = -
As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Amount Fair Value
FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets not measurcd at fair value
Cash and cash cquisalkenls - - 3(0) o0 - - -

Financial liubilities not measured at fair value
Trade payables . ~ 713 713 - - -

= - 713 713 - - =

The fair value of the financiu] assels and habililies 1s included at the prce that would b recetved to sell an assel or paid to transfer a hiabihity in an orderly ransaction between markel participants al measurament date
The carrying value of lease liabihties approximates the Fair values as on e reporung dale, as these are camed at amortised cost and are based on the net present value ol e anticipated future cash flows using applicable discount rate

The management asscssed that faur value of cash und cash equivalents. trade payables and other inancial abilities approximate their carrying amounts Lhat are reasonable approximations of far value largely due to the shorl-lerm matunties
ol these insliuments

There have ben no Iransfers betwen Level | Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the penod ended 31 March 20235

[This page has been lell blank intentionally |
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23

(a)

(i)

b)

)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company's financial liabilities comprise lease liabilities, trade payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s
operations The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior management ensures that
the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises three types of risk:
interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk The financial instruments affected by market risk are long-term bank borrowings and
deposits

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's financial assets and
liabilities are non-interest bearing

The exposure of the Company's financial instruments as at 31 March 2025 to interest rate risk is as follows:
Floating rate financial  Fixed rate linancial

N L Non-interest bearing Total

insir 1NSLr
Financial assels - - 1,209,634 1,209,634
Financial liabilities - - 23,285 23,285
The exposure of the Company's financial instruments as at 31 March 2024 to Interest rate risk is as follows:

Flonl.lng rate financial lee.d rate financial Non-interest bearing Total

instruments instruments
Financial assets - - 300 300
Financial liabilities - - 713 713

The Company does not have any floating rate debt obligation and hence the interest rale sensitivity is not applicable

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuale because of changes in foreign exchange rates The Company does not have any
foreign currency exposure as at the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 and therefore there is no foreign currency risk on the future cash flows of the Company

Credit risk
Credit risk is the nisk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customner contract, leading to a financial loss The Company does not have exposure to
credit risk either from its operaling activities or from its financing activities

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligalions without incurring unacceptable losses The Company’s objective
is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements The Company closely monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash

system, It maintains adeq sources of financing including loans from banks at an optimised cost

The lable below sumnmarises the maturily profile of the Company s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments

Carrying " 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total
value 1 year
Period ended 31 March 2025
Lease liabilities 19,128 15,017 4111 - 19,128
Trade payables 4,157 4,157 - = 4,157
23,285 19,174 4,111 - 23,285
Carrying Iy than 1 to 5 years > § years Total
value 1 year
Period ended 31 March 2024
Trade payables 713 713 - - 713
713 713 - - 713
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24 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and all ather equity reserves attribulable to the equity holders The primary objective
of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value through continuing growth

The Company manages its capilal structure and makes adj 1ts in Jight of ch in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants To maintain or adjust the
capital structure. the Company may issue new shares The Company monilors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Total debts - -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1.209.634) {300)
Net debt (A) (1,209,634) {300)
Equity 1,215,265 (476)
Capital and net debt (B) 9,632 (776)
Gearing ratio [(A)/(B)] (125.59) 0.39

The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31
March 2025 and 31 March 2024

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans
and borrowings that define capital structure requirements There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period

25 Leases
The Company has lease contracls for office used in its operations. Lease of office is currently for 2 years

The carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the movements during the year:

Lease liability

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening balance - -
Addition 29,183 -
Accretion of interest 1,285 -
Payments {11,340) -
Closing balance 19,128 -
Lease liability recognised in balance sheet
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current 15,017 -
Non-current 4111 E
19,128 -
Maturity analysis Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
0-1year 15,017 -
1 -5 years 4001 =
19,128 3 -
A ts recognised in the stat ofl profit or loss

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Total t recognised in the stat t of profit or loss

Amount recognised in statement of cash flows

Payment of lease liability (including interest)

For the period from
For the year ended 21 Navember 2023
31 March 2025 {dute of incorporation) lo
31 March 2024

10,943 =
1,285 -
12,228 -

For the period from
For the year ended 21 November 2023
31 March 2025 (date of incorporation) 1o
31 March 2024

11,340 =
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26 Financial ratios

a)

Current ratio = Current assets divided by Current liabilities

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

Current assets 1,214,065 300
Current liabilities 25,287 776
Ratio 48.01 0.39
%age change from previous period 12318.68%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has increased from 0.39 as at 3| March 2024 to 48,01 as at 31 March 2025 mainly due to significant increase share capital during the year ended 31 March 2025 as compared
to previous period

b) Debt equity ratio = Total Debt divided by Total equity
The Company has no debts hence this ratio is not applicable

¢) Debt service coverage ratio = Karnings available for debt services divided by L'otal interest and principal payments
The Company has no debts hence this ratio is not applicable

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Equity

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss after lax (31,259) (776)
Total equity 1,219,265 (476)
Ratio -2.56% 163.03%
% Change [rom previous period -101.57%

Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has decreased from | 63 as at 31 March 2024 to (0 03) as at 31 March 2025 mainly due to increase in losses during the year ended 31 March 2025, as compared to previous
period

e) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of material consumed divided by average inventory
There is no inventory maintained in the Company and hence this ratio is not applicable

f)  Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Credit Sales divided by average trade receivables
The Company has not started its operations and hence this ratio is not applicable
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g)

h)

D

k)

27

a)

b)

Trade payables turnover ratio = Credit purchases divided by average trade payables

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Credit Purchases 19,093 776
Average trade payables 2,435 357
Ratio 7.81 2.15
264.06%

% Change from previous period
Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has increased from 2.15 as at 31 March 2024 to 7.81 as at 31 March 2025 mainly due to significant increase in credit purchases as compared to increase in average trade

payables during the year ended 31 March 2025, as compared to previous period

Net capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Net Working capital whereas net working capital = current assets - current liabilities
There is no turmover in the Company and hence this ratio is not applicable

Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Sales
There is no turnover in the Company and hence this ratio is not applicable.

Return on Capital employed = Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) divided by Capital Employed

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Loss before tax (A) (24,849) (776)
Finance costs (B) 1,285 -
Other income (C) 50,101 -
EBIT (D) = (A)+(B)~(C) (73,665) (776)
Capital Employed (G)=(E)+(F) 1,238,393 (476)
Total Equity (E) 1,219,265 (476)
Borrowings (including lease liabilities) (F) 19,128 -
Ratio (D)/(G) -5.95% 163.03%
-103.65%

% Change [rom previous period
Reason for change more than 25%:
The ratio has decreased from 1 63 as at 31 March 2024 to (0 06) as at 31 March 2025 mainly due to increase in losses during the year ended 31 March 2025, as compared to previous
year

Return on investment

The Company does not have any investment and hence this ratio is not applicable

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Capital commitments
The Company does not have any capital commitments which would impact its financial position

Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position
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a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

g)

k)

m)

n)
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For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
regrstration a1 01248W/W-100022

F

Mohit Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 513681

Place: Gurugram

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013

The Company does not have any Benami property and no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and the rules made thereunder

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC’) beyond the statutory period

The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current period

The Company has not advanced or provided loan to or invested funds in any entity(ies) including foreign entities (Intermediaries) or to any other person(s) with the understanding that
the Intermediary shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries), or
- provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)
that the Company shall:

- directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the peried in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

The Company does not have any subsidairy, hence clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the
Company

The Company has not been declared a ‘Wilful Defaulter’ by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordance with the
guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India

The Company is not required to undertake any corporate social responsibility activities during the current financial year’

The Company has not entered into any Iransactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companines Act, 1956
The Company (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) is not a C1C

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the current year

The Company does not have any working capital borrowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets

The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current financial year

Events after the reporting period
There are no significant reportable events occurring after the reporting period
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